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I. Statutory Authority 

1. 1111s 18 an Amended Adminjstrative Complaint ("Amended Complaint") issued 
under the authority vested in the Administrator Qfthe United States Environmental Protection 
Agency ("EPA" or '"Complainan!"') under Section 309(g) of Ole CIClUl Waler Ael ("CWA"), 33 
U.S.C. § 1319(g), and 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension of Pcnnits." The 
Administrator has delegated this authority to the Regional Admini:strator of the EPA, Region 4. 
who has duly redelegated this authority to the Director of the Waler Protection Division, Region 
4. 

2. Thi, Amended Complaint is Issoed pursuant to the Apnl20, 2011, Order of 
Administrative Law Judge Gunning J:"Yfanting Complainant'S Motion for Leave to Amend the 
Complaint. 

3, This Amended Complaint is issued to Duvall Development Company. Inc. 
("Duvall Development"), Jeffeey H. Duvall, ("Je1Trey Duvall"), Duvall & Son Livestock, Inc, 
('~Duvall Livestock"), and Louis Steve DuvaU. Sr. {"Steve Dllvan'~}, hereinafter also collectivdy 
referred to at.; Respondents. 

(I. Statu.cuy and Regulaturv Background 

4. Section 309(g)(l)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(IXA), states "[wlhenever, 
on the bash;. of any information available - the Administrator finds that any person has violated 
[Section 301 ufthe CWA, 33 U.S.C, § 131 I].. , . the Administrator, .. may, .ftC'!· wnsultation 
with the State in which the violation occurs, as-scss a class I civil penalty or a clu."g TI civil 
penalty under [33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B)]." 

5. Section 301(.) of the CWA. 33 U,S,c' § 131 1 (a), stales "[cJxcepl as in 
compliance with. ,. [Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1314], the discharge ofany [dredged 
or fill material] by any person shall be unlawful," Section 404 oftue CWA, 33 U,S,C. § 1344, 



authorizes the Secretary ofthe Army, acting through the Chief ofEnginecrs, U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, to issue permits for the discbarge of dredged or fill material into navigable waters. 

6. Section 502(12) uflhe CWA, 33 u.s.C. *n62(12), defines a "discharge of 
pollu\llnts" as "[nJny addition of any pollulant to navigable waters from any point souroe ...." 

7. Seelion 502(J4) ufthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14), defines "point sou""," as 
"[aJny disC,,"t':mible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe. 
ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit [or] discrete fissure ... from which pollutants are or may be 
discharged." 

8. Section 502(7) of tho CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), defines "navigable waters" 3S 

"[tlhe walers ofth. t:nited States, including the territorial seas." 

9. Federal regulations under 40 C.P.R. § 232.2 define the term "waters oflhe United 
States" to include "streams," 

III, AlI!tI:ations 

10. Respondent Duval! Development, at all times relevant to this Amended 
Complaint, was the Qwner(,)fa tract ofland located adjacent to Oltl441, near the city of Clayton, 
Rahun County, Georgia, near latitude 34°51'50.602HN, longitude X3°24'51.1183"W (the 
Sitc)(Exhibits A and B). 

11. Respondent Duvall Livcstock, at all times relcvant to this Amended Complaint, 
operated a business on the Site. 

12. Respondent Jeffrey Duvall, at all times relevant to this Amended Complaint, was 
the Chief Executive Officer. President, Sole Shareholder and Agent of Duvall Development and 
the Chief Exccutive Officer and President of Duvall Livestock. 

13. Respondent Steve Duvall, at all times relevant to this Amended Complaint, was 
the Chief Financial Officer of Duvall Livestock. 

14. Respondents are persons within the definition set forth under Section 502(5) of 
the CWA, 33 U.s.C. § 1362(5). 

15. Commencing on or about approx.imately January 2005, to the present. 
Respondents, or those acting on behalf of. and at the direction ofRespondents. discharged 
dredged and/or fill materiallnto fbur trihutaries flowing across the Site using earth moving 
machiu(",ry owned by Duvall Dovc1opmt:nt and/or Duvall Livestock. during unauthorized 
activities associated with the clearing and leveling of the Site and the installation of48-inch 
diameter cement pipes. 
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16. Respondents impacted approximately 1,500 lineae feet of four unnamed 
tributarie$ to Stekoa Creek j a navigable water of the United States. 

17. The disdmrged dredged and/or fill material, including earthen material deposited 
at the Site, are "pollutants" as defined undcr Section 502(6) of the CWA. 

13. The earth moving machinery employed by Respondents to deposit the dredged 
andlor fill material at the Site are "point sources" .. defined under Section 502(14) of the CWA. 

19. Respondents' placement of the dredged and/or fin material at the Site constitutes 
a "discharge ofpollutants" as defined undor S""iion 502{l2) of the CWA 

20. At no time during the di$charge of dredged andlor fill material at the Site from 
apprtJxinu'Iteiy January 200S. to the present, did Respondents possess a permit under Section 404 
of the CWA, 33 U.s.C. § 1344. authoriLing the activities perfurmed by Respondents. Each 
discharge by Respondents ofpollutant'\. into navigable waters without the required pennit issued 
under Section 404 of the CWA, 33 l:.S.C § 1344, is a violation of Section 301(0) ohile CWA, 
JJ U.S.C. § 1311(a). 

21. Each day the material discharged by Respondents remains in waters of the United 
States without the required permit under Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes 
a day of violation of Section 301 ohhe CWA, 33 U.s.C. § 1311. Respondents are jointly and 
severally liable for violations of Section 301 of the CWA as set forth above, 

IV. Notice 

22. As required hy 40 CFK § 22.38(b), Complainant has consulted with the State of 
Georgia regarding this proposed action by mailing a copy of this Amended Complaint to the 
Georgia Department of Environmental Protection and offering an opportunity to consult with 
Complainant on the proposed penalty assessment. 

V. Penalty 

23, Ra<;ed on the above Findings ofViolation and under Section 309(g){2) ofthe 
CWA, 33 U.S.C § 1319(g)(2), the Administrator may assess a civil penalty orup to $11,000 per 
violatl0n per day. not to exceed a maximum of$137,500, for violations of Sections 301 (a) and 
404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1311(a) arul1344. Consistent with the 2004 Civil Monetary 
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13.2004). based on rhe above 
Findings of Violatioll and onder Section 309(g)(2) ofthe CWA, 33 IJ.S.c. § 1319(g)(2), the 
Administrator may assess a civil penalty ofup to $11,000 pcrviolation per day, not to exceed a 
maximum of$1 S7~500, forviolatioIis of Sections 301(a) and 404 of the CWA. 33 U,S,C. § 
13 Il(.) and 1344, that occurred after March 15,2004, through January 12, 2009. For violations 
occurring after January 12, 2009, under the 2008 Civil Monetary Penalty Adjustment Rule, 
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73 Fed. Reg. 75340 (December 11, 2008), the penalties are $16,000 per day up to a maximum of 
$177,500. Based upon the facts alleged in this Amended Complaint, and based upon the nature, 
circumstances, extent, and gravity of lhe violations alleged, as well as Respondents' ability to 
pay, prior history of such violations, and such other matters as justice may require, Complainant 
hereby proposes to issue a Final Order Assessing Administrative Penalties to Respondents for 
violations alleged in tius Complaint. The Complainant proposes that Respondents pay a penalty 
in an amount of up to $177,500 for the violations staled in this Complaint. 

VI. Hearing 

24. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(e), Respondents must file a written Answer to this 
Amended Complaint within 20 days of service of this Amended Complaint with the: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protcction Agcncy, Rcgion 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-3104 

25. The Answer must clearly and directly admit, deny or explain each of the factual 
allegations contained in the Amended Complaint with respect to which Respondents have any 
knowledge, or clearly state that Respondents have no knowledge as to particular factual 
allegations in the Amended Complaint. The Answer also must state the circumstances or 
arguments that are alleged to constitute grounds of defense, and the facts which Respondents 
intend lo place at issue. 

26. Failure to deny any offhe factual allegations in this Amended Complaint 
constitutes admission of the undenied allegations. 

27. A copy of the Answer and any subsequent documents that Respondents file in this 
action should be sent to: 

Mr. Robert Caplan 
Senior Attorney 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta Federal Center 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-3104 

Mr. Caplan represents the EPA in this matter and is authorized to receive service lor the EPA in 
this proceeding. He may be telephoned at (404) 562-9520. 

28. In their Answer to the original Complaint, Respondents Jeffrey Duvall and Duvall 
Development requested a hearing. Pursuant to an Order issued by Administrative Law 
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Judge Gunning, dated April 20, 20) 1, a hearing has been scheduled in this matter tOr 
August 23 - 26, 2011, in Atlanta, Georgia. IfRespondents Duvall Livestock and Steve Duvall 
are also seeking a hearing, they must include a request for hearing in their Answer to this 
Amended Complaint. The hearing will be held and txmductoo in accordance with the provisions 
of4O C.F.R. Part 22. If Respondents fuil to file a written Answer within 20 calendar days of 
receipt of this Amended Complaint. a Dciuult Order may be issued against Respondents hy the 
Regional Administrator. Js..<mance of a Default Order wHl oon:;titute il binding admission of all 
aJlegations made in the Amended Complaint and a waiver of Reb-pondents' right in this case to a 
hearing l1nder the CWA, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17. The civil penalty proposed in this 
Amended Complaint will then become due and payable without rurther proceedings 60 day~ 
after the Default Order beoome~ the Final Order of rhe Administrator pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 
22.31. Respondents' failure to fully pay the propose'\! ptlllalty, "" assessed by lhe Final Order, by 
its due date will result in a civil action to coHect the assessed penalty, plus interest~ attorneys 
fees, costs. and an additional quartt.'Tly nonpayment penalty under Section 309(g)(9)(B) of the 
CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(9J(B). 

VII. Settlement Confcrenu 

29. Although a hearing has been scheduled in this matter, Respondenrs may request 
an informal settlement conference by contacting the EPA's counseL Mr. Caplan, at the address 
and/or phone number provided in paragraph 27 above, 

30. Respondents' request for an informal settlement conference does not extend the 
20-day period during which a written Answer and Request for Hearing must be submitted. 
Respondents may pursue the informal conterence procedure, however, simultaneously with the 
adjudicatory hearing procedure. The EPA encourages all parties facing civil penalties to pursue 
settlement through an infomUlI conferencc, Thc EPA, howcvCf, will not reduce the penalty 
simply because such a conference is held. Any settlement that may be reached as a result of such 
conference will be cmb(ldk-d in a Final Order. Rcspondents' consent to a Final Order will 
constitute a waiver of the right to request a hearing on any matter stipulated to therein. 

31. Neither assessment nor payment of an administrative civil penalty under Section 
309(g)(2) oflhe CWA will affect Respondents j continuing obligation to compiy with thc CWA, 
ur any other federal, State or local law or regulation. 

32, Any sctilcmeut reached as Ii result of the tntormal conference will be finalized by 
the issuance of a written Consent Agreement and Final Order approved by the EPA. 

COMPLAINANT: 

Date: MAY 2 5 2tJ11~~~.f:-.=.""..,... 
'lattina 


Direct f, ater Prottx..1ion Division 

,Region 4 




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I HEREBY CERTIFY that the origin.1 and one copy of the foregoing Amended 
Adminlstrative Complaint styled In the Matter of: Duvall Development ('0., Inc., Jeffrey H. 
Duvall, Duvall & Son Uvestoek, Tne., and Louis Steve DuVall, Sr., Docket No, CWA-04-1010­
5505, was filed on May 25,2011, with lhe Region 4 Regional Hearing Clm, and thal I have 
served a true and correct copy of the samoon Iudge Barbara Gunning and the attorneys [or the 
parties Hsted below in the manner imHcatcd: 

Judge Barbara A. Gunning 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Mail Code 1900L 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue. N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20460 

Robert Caplan 
Senior Attorney 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta. GC(Jrgia 30303 

Edwin Schwattz, Esq, . 
Sweetnam & Schwartz, LLC 
Three Ravina Drive 
Suite 1700 
Atlanta, Georgia 30346 

C. Allyn Stockton, Jr .. Esq. 
Stockton & Stockton 
P.O. Box 1550 
Clayton, Georgia 30525 

Dated: May 25. 2011 

(Via pouch mail) 

(Via EPA', Internal Mail) 

(Vi. Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 

(Via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 

Environmental Protection Specialist 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
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